
 
Blackman Charter Township 

Local Development Finance Authority 
Served By The Enterprise Group 

____________________________________________________________ 
1990 W. Parnall Road     •  Jackson, MI 49201     •       517/788-4345     •     FAX 517/788-4689 

 
Board Meeting 

Wednesday, May 18, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 
Blackman Charter Township Meeting Hall 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order by Chair 
 
II. Public Comment 

 
III. Semi-Annual Informational Meeting (per Recodified Tax Increment 

Financing Act 57)   
a. Goals and direction of BLDFA 
b. Upcoming Projects   

 
IV. *Approval of Minutes from the February 16, 2022 Board Meeting 
 

V. *Treasurer’s Report – through March 31, 2022 
 
VI. EDA Grant Update  

 
VII. BLDFA Properties Update: 

a. JTP North Property Update 
b. Technique Update 

 
VIII. BOARD/STAFF COMMENTS 

 
IX. Next Meeting: Wednesday, August 17, 2022 at 6:00 p.m.  

 
 
 
*Indicates Attachment 
 

 



____________________________________________________________ 
1990 W. Parnall Road     •  Jackson, MI 49201     •       517/788-4345     •     FAX 517/788-4689 

 
Blackman Charter Township 

Local Development Finance Authority 
Served By The Enterprise Group 

 
Board Meeting Minutes 

February 16, 2022 
 
The Local Development Finance Authority of Blackman Charter Township held a Board Meeting at 
6:00 p.m., Wednesday, February 16, 2022, at the Blackman Charter Township Meeting Hall. 
 
Members present (7):  Diane Derby, Diane Donaldson, David Elwell, Pete Jancek, Chad Linabury, 
Darrell Norris and Katie Pitchford 
 
Members absent (4):  Cindy Acker, Barry Harmon, Bob Sayles and Bill Warner 
 
Staff: Debbie Kelly and Alex Masten, The Enterprise Group of Jackson  
 
Others: Jack Ripstra, Township Engineer; Ray Snell, Jackson County Commissioner; Stephanie Hinkle, 
Blackman Charter Township Deputy Assessor; Arnold Dolman, Blackman Charter Township Assessor; 
Phil Preston, Blackman Charter Township Treasurer; and Joe Bentschneider, Jackson County 
Department of Transportation  
 
The BLDFA Board Meeting was called to order by Chairman Jancek at 6:00 p.m. 
 
Public Comment: None 
 
Approval of Minutes from December 8, 2021 Board Meeting: 
Motion by Ms. Derby and seconded by Ms. Pitchford to approve the Minutes from the December 8, 
2021 Board Meeting. Motion approved unanimously.  
 
Treasurer’s Report through January 31, 2022: 
The current administrative fund balance available is $753,045.47. Motion by Mr. Elwell and seconded 
by Mr. Norris to approve the Treasurer’s Report through January 31, 2022 as presented. Motion 
approved unanimously by roll call vote.  
 
Introductions were made around the table. 
 
EDA Grant Update:  
Mr. Bentschneider from the Jackson County Department of Transportation attended the meeting. Ms. 
Kelly thanked him and Mr. Riptra for their work with the EDA Grant. Special Award Condition # 13 for 
evidence of Good Title requirement is done and is getting reviewed by our EDA representative for final 
submittal. Mr. Bentschneider provided a timeline stating that in April bid letting will begin, as well as 
more advertising. He added that there will be more information for the public at this time. He stated that 
park infrastructure and the road will begin in May or June, and he is hopeful that infrastructure into the 



____________________________________________________________ 
1990 W. Parnall Road     •  Jackson, MI 49201     •       517/788-4345     •     FAX 517/788-4689 

park will be done by November begin receiving commitments from potential tenants as early as winter 
of 2022 and the spring of 2023. He mentioned that improvements to County Farm Road will begin in 
2023, and that signals take about one year to order. New tenants can build during the same time that the 
improvements are being made to County Farm Road. Mr. Bentschneider included that the cost estimate 
is padded and he is confident that it will be covered by the grant. He updated the board that there are a 
total of 17 easements in which 12 have been received. He stated that three of the easements they were 
unable to obtain will not affect their plans, the fourth was a resident who did not wish to comply, but 
they are able to work around it. The last easement they were unable to obtain was the JSP property 
because they are currently trying to sell, so there will be a shortened sidewalk which will not go through 
the JSP property. Mr. Bentschneider informed the Board that the Township offered to pay for those 
easements and that he will get a total cost for the Board. Chairman Jancek reminded the Board that the 
Blackman LDFA will be responsible for maintaining the sidewalks for five years, and then it becomes 
the property owner’s responsibility. 
 
BLDFA Properties Update: 
Ms. Masten stated there is nothing new to share about Technique.  
 
Board/Staff Comments:  
Mr. Elwell gave an update on the Poor Farm Cemetery which was established in 1839. He shared that he 
applied for a historical society marker, which was approved two months ago. He also received a grant 
and wants to hold an event in May, prior to construction starting at JTPN. He stated there are 70 names 
of people buried there, and the records have been burned. He is applying for a local and state designation 
which is a $250 fee. Mr. Elwell asked the Blackman LDFA Board to approve expenses for the historical 
society marker which is $3,900. Motion by Mr. Elwell to authorize a letter that the Blackman LDFA 
will pay for the cost of the marker. Seconded by Mr. Linabury. Unanimously approved by roll call 
vote. 
 
Mr. Elwell shared that he is talking with the county to do ground penetrating radar at the cemetery, 
which JCDOT will do. Mr. Ripstra has done the rendering for parking at the cemetery and wants to put a 
fence around it also. Mr. Elwell stated that the Township asked him to do research on the other two 
township cemeteries with Ms. Sercombe, Blackman Charter Township Clerk. He stated there is funding 
available for upkeep.  
 
County Update: 
Commissioner Snell stated that the county is considering expanding the 911 dispatch center, and the 
Chanter Road jail. The county is also looking to demolish the building on Wesley Street. Chairman 
Jancek stated that Region 2 Planning Commission is tasked with auditing the county’s buildings and 
properties to get an idea of what can be done. He also wants to look at current assets and decide what 
makes sense for future development.  
 
The next BLDFA meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, May 18, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at the Blackman 
Charter Township Meeting Hall.  
 
Meeting adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted by Debbie Kelly and Emily Cones, Blackman LDFA Staff. 



BLDFA Invoice's for the May 18 2022 Board Meeting
 
Vendor Description Amount

Invoices Paid in April
Williams, Courtney Easement 1,072.00         
Vischer, Robert & Janice Easement 149.00             
Sharpshair, Jacquelyn Easement 1,309.00         
Hill, Philip & Roberts Easement 800.00             
Balluff, William & Susan Hinton Easement 2,163.00         
Sun Windham Hills Easement 3,220.00         
Michigan Confederated Assoc of the 7 Day Easement 8,391.00         
TAC Manufacturing Easement 655.00             
Technique Properties LLC Easement 7,394.00         
County Farm Rd Land Acquisiton Easement 522.00             
Boswell, Schultz, Sonnenbery & Arnett 1st Qtr 2022 Accounting Services 2,883.65         
Blackman Officers POAM Assoc Address Sign Poor Farm 25.00               
Blackman Twp Tree Trimming on Springport Rd 557.78             
Enterprise Group Semi-Annual Contract 13,750.00       
JAMA Annual Dinner 125.00             
Ripstra Professional Services 3,039.50         

46,055.93$     

Invoices to be Paid in May
American Title Title Search 250.00             
Blackman Twp 2021 Delq Tax Settlement 2.93                 
Blackman Twp P/S 2021 Delq Tax Settlement 7.18                 
Blackman Twp Park 2021 Delq Tax Settlement 0.90                 
Blackman Twp Debt Svc Roads 2021 Delq Tax Settlement 9.14                 
Jackson County Treasurer 2021 Delq Tax Settlement 7.51                 
Jackson County Register of Deeds 4540 County Farm Rd 42.90               
Jackson County Register of Deeds 4224 County Farm Rd 34.30               
Jackson County Register of Deeds 4214 County Farm Rd 42.90               
Jackson County Register of Deeds 4196 County Farm Rd 38.60               
Jackson County Register of Deeds 4200 Nevada Dr 51.50               
Jackson County Register of Deeds 4008 Knightsbridge Ln 68.70               
Jackson County Register of Deeds 3600 County Farm Rd 103.10             
Jackson County Register of Deeds 4111 County Farm Rd 38.60               
Jackson County Register of Deeds 1500 Technology Dr 94.50               
Jackson County Register of Deeds 3787 County Farm Rd 34.30               
Jackson County Register of Deeds 3775 County Farm Rd 34.30               

861.36$          

 



County Farm/Springport Corridor Improvements
4/4/2022

Property ID
Property Address 

(Jackson, MI 49201)
Perm Area 

(SFT)
Agreed-upon 

Amount
Owner Owner Address

000-08-19-301-003-04 4540 County Farm Rd. 2,280.00 $1,072.00 Cortney L Williams 4540 County Farm Rd.

000-08-19-376-001-00 4224 County Farm Rd. 480.00 $149.00 Robert & Janice Vischer Rev Liv Tr 4224 County Farm Rd.

000-08-19-376-002-02 4214 County Farm Rd. 850.00 $1,309.00 Jacquelyn Sharpshair 4214 County Farm Rd.
000-08-19-376-002-01 4196 County Farm Rd. 630.00 $800.00 Philip M & Roberta D Hill 4196 County Farm Rd.

000-08-19-326-001-08 4200 Nevada Dr. 1,050.00 $2,163.00 William Balluff & Susan E Hinton 4020 Erika Dr.; Pleasant Lake, MI 49272

000-08-19-326-001-04 4008 Knightsbridge Ln. 4,318.00 $3,220.00 Sun Windham Hills LLC 27777 Franklin Rd., Suite 200; Southfield, MI 48034

000-08-19-476-001-00 3600 County Farm Rd. 3,310.00 $8,391.00
The Michigan Confederated 
Association of the 7th Day

320 W. Saint Joseph St.; Lansing, MI 48933

000-07-27-101-006-00
3000 Dearing Rd.; Parma, 
MI 49269

200.00 $213.00 Tracy D & Marsha M Collier 3000 Dearing Rd.; Parma, MI 49269

000-08-30-126-001-00 4111 County Farm Rd. 560.00 $655.00 TAC Manufacturing Inc 4111 County Farm Rd.
000-08-30-201-003-08 1500 Technology Dr. 5,915.00 $7,394.00 Technique Properties LLC
000-08-30-201-001-00 3787 County Farm Rd. 2,175.00 $468.00
000-08-30-201-002-00 3775 County Farm Rd. 250.00 $54.00

1500 Technology Dr.
County Farm Road Acquisitions LLC





























County Farm/Springport Corridor Improvements

ROW Status Report

5/9/2022

Property Address 

(Jackson, MI 49201)

Agreed‐upon 

Amount
Owner Contact Person Phone Number E‐mail Status

Transfer 

Tax

Recording 

Fee

4540 County Farm Rd. $1,072.00 Cortney L Williams 517‐795‐6397 cwilliams_79@hotmail.com

Door hanger dropped off 11/11/21;

Call received 11/12/21;

Documents sent on 11/19/21;

E‐mail sent 12/8/21 with improvements sheet

Spoke on phone 12/13/21, requested meeting to discuss concerns

4/25/22 Needs to check schedule on availability (would like more info on 

sidewalk maintance

4/27/2022 Called @ 12:14PM, Meet on Friday 1:30/2:00
4/29/2022 Contacted and will stop at office to sign around 1:30‐2:00

 $  12.90   $  30.00 

4224 County Farm Rd. $149.00 Robert & Janice Vischer Rev Liv Tr 517‐795‐9152

Door hanger dropped off 11/11/21;

Door hanger dropped off 11/24/21;

Call received 11/26/21;

Spoke on phone 11/29/21, will drop off information

Documents sent on XX/XX/21;

Meeting scheduled for 12/16/21 to discuss property impacts

4/25/22 Left voice mail @ 6:52 PM

4/26/22 Called @ 1:19PM ‐ No answer

4/27/22 Called @ 8:27AM ‐ Schedule meeting at 1:30PM on 

4/27

 $    4.30   $  30.00 

4214 County Farm Rd. $1,309.00 Jacquelyn Sharpshair 517‐474‐2811 jackiek.cah@gmail.com

Door hanger dropped off 11/11/21;

resident left message 11/11/21;

Spoke on phone 11/11/21, will e‐mail information;

Documents sent on 11/19/21

E‐mail received on 11/13/21 requesting clarification on sidewalk maintenance

E‐mail received on 12/7/21 with $3,000 counter offer;

E‐mail sent on 12/8/21 explaining that resident can accept easement or 

facilities can be built without entering property

4/25/22 Called, anytime Wednesday works to resign

4/26/22 Called @ 4:29PM, Can sign around 1:00PM Wednesday

 $  12.90   $  30.00 

4196 County Farm Rd. $800.00 Philip M & Roberta D Hill 517‐281‐0410 robertahill7@hotmail.com

Door hanger dropped off 11/11/21;

Call received 11/15/21;

Left message 11/19/21;

Spoke on phone 11/22/21, will e‐mail information;

Documents sent on 11/22/21;

E‐mail received on 12/13/21 with $800 counter offer

4/25/22 Called, Flexible on Time & Day, offered to come to office

(Concerned with sump pump in driveway, please look into)

4/27/22 Called @ 8:24 can meet on site @ 2:00 on 4/27

 $    8.60   $  30.00 

4200 Nevada Dr. $2,163.00 William Balluff & Susan E Hinton wballuff@outlook.com

Documents mailed on 11/24/21

4/26/22 Emailed @ 2:17PM ‐ Waiting for a response

4/27/22 Email received @ 6:24PM ‐ Will stop at JCDOT @ 3:30PM on 4/28 to 

sign

4/28/22 Did not Show up

4/29/22 email received ‐ will stop at office @ 11:00 and 

Wife will stop over at 2:45/3:00

 $  21.50   $  30.00 

4008 Knightsbridge Ln. $4,023.00 Sun Windham Hills LLC
Theresa;

Mike Barnett

517‐796‐8888;

248‐864‐0358
windhamhills@suncommunities.com

Called 11/10/21, will e‐mail information;

Documents sent on 11/19/21;

Call received 11/29/21;

Spoke on phone 11/30/21, indicated that they would be accepting easement;

Revised improvements sheet sent 12/1/21 showing that existing facilities 

would not be affected

4/25/22 Left voice mail @ 7:03 PM

4/26/22 Received Call @ 9:38 AM ‐ Said we can email updated 

easement and can over night it back to JCDOT
4/26/22 Sent email @ 3:47 with updated easements

4/27/22 Mike signed the easement and overnighted it to JCDOT, email 

received at 2:32PM

 $  38.70   $  30.00 

3600 County Farm Rd. $8,391.00
The Michigan Confederated 

Association of the 7th Day
Joel Nephew 517‐316‐1524 jdnephew@misda.org

Called 11/10/21, will e‐mail information;

Documents sent on 11/19/21;

Call received 11/30/21, on‐site meeting scheduled for 12/2/21 at 4:00 pm;

Signed document receive via e‐mail 12/7/21

4/25/22 Left voice mail @ 7:05 PM

4/26/22 Available 4/27 or 4/28 to re‐sign ‐ Can either sign and mail it 

back or we can pick up in Lansing
4/26/22 Sent Email @ 3:47 PM, with updated easement to be signed

4/27/22 Sent Email @ 9:35 AM, needed easement slightly revised and re‐

sent.  Plans to sign 4/28 and mail from Lansing to JCDOT

4/28/22 Email received @ 8:03 AM ‐ copy of easement received via email, 

original copy is in mail

 $  73.10   $  30.00 

3000 Dearing Rd.; Parma, 

MI 49269
$213.00 Tracy D & Marsha M Collier 517‐740‐7411 69vette0494@att.net

Door hanger dropped off 11/11/21;

Message received 11/12/21, 11/15/21, 11/16/21;

Left message 11/19/21;

Documents sent on 11/19/21;

Call received 11/30/21, on‐site meeting scheduled for 12/2/21 at 10:00 am;

4/25/22 Needs to check schedule on availability

4/26/22 Text @ 1:57PM ‐ Available 4/28 @ 5:00 or later, plan on 5:15 but no 

notary available at that sime.

4/28/22 Dropped easement off at house at 4:45 PM, will follow up after the 

weekend to see if easement was signed & notarized

 $    4.30   $  30.00 

4111 County Farm Rd. $655.00 TAC Manufacturing Inc Scott Sturgis 517‐789‐7000, 3220 ssturgis@tramgroup.com

Left Message 11/10/21;

Returned call 11/11/21, left another message 11/11/21;

Call received 11/12/21, on‐site meeting scheduled for 11/19/21 at 1:30 pm;

Documents sent on 11/18/21

4/25/22 Left voice mail @ 7:16 PM

4/26/22 Called back @ 9:25 AM ‐ Available 4/27 @ 1:00 to sign, 

needs Notary

 $    8.60   $  30.00 

1500 Technology Dr. $7,394.00 Technique Properties LLC  $  64.50   $  30.00 

3787 County Farm Rd. $468.00  $    4.30   $  30.00 

3775 County Farm Rd. $54.00  $    4.30   $  30.00 

$26,691.00

Ronnie Johncox 517‐392‐1315 rj@tirps.com

Left Message 11/10/21;

Call received 11/22/21;

Documents sent on 11/22/21;

Spoke on phone 12/13/21, indicated that he would review plans on week of 

12/20/21 and would give us his decision then

4/25/22 Will be in town Tuesday/Wednesday (5/3 & 5/4)
4/26/22 Sent email @ 3:32 with updated easements to be signed 

5/3/22 Emailed Ronnie at 6:53 AM asking when he would be available to send 

sign easements ‐ No response

5/4/22 Called at 8:00 AM and 11:30 AM ‐ No response

County Farm Road Acquisitions LLC



BLDFA Attendance Log 2022

BUDGET ANNUAL
BLDFA Board Members 2/17/2021 4/21/2021 8/18/2021 11/10/2021 12/8/2021 2/16/2022

Cindy Acker P A U A A A

Diane Derby P P A A P P

Diane Donaldson P P P P P P

David Elwell P P P P P P

Barry Harmon P P P P P A

Pete Jancek P P P P P P

Chad Linabury P P P P A P

Darrell Norris P A A A P P

Bob Sayles A P P P A A

Katie Pitchford n/a n/a P A P P

William Warner P A U A P A

P = Present
A = Notified Absence
U = Unknown Absence


	5 18 22  BLDFA Meeting Agenda and PA 57 Semi-Annual Informational Meeting
	III. Semi-Annual Informational Meeting (per Recodified Tax Increment Financing Act 57)
	VI. EDA Grant Update
	VIII. BOARD/STAFF COMMENTS
	IX. Next Meeting: Wednesday, August 17, 2022 at 6:00 p.m.
	*Indicates Attachment

	BLDFA Meeting Minutes 2 16 2022
	Board Meeting Minutes
	February 16, 2022

	BLDFA Invoices for May 18 2022 Meeting
	Sheet1

	MAY County Farm Easement Amounts
	MAY Boswell Schultz Sonnenberg  Arnett PLC
	MAY Blackman POAM
	MAY Blackman Charter Township
	MAY Enterprise Group
	MAY JAMA
	MAY Ripstra
	MAY American Title
	MAY Delq Tax
	MAY 5-09-22 County Farm Easements Summary - With Fees and Taxes (002)
	BLDFA Attendance Log 2022.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADP374B.tmp
	Board Meeting Minutes
	February 16, 2022




